
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny 
Panel to be held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Monday, 15 July 2019

TIME: 2.00 pm

VENUE: Committee Room 2, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of meeting held on 17 June 2019 and matters arising (Pages 1 - 6)

4  Place Directorate Budget 2019/20 - Monitoring (Pages 7 - 16)

5  Business Plan for Place 2019/20 (Pages 17 - 34)

6  Library Service Improvement Plan Update (Pages 35 - 36)

7  Trading Standards - Counterfeiting (to follow/be tabled) 

8  Work Programme 2019/20 

9  Any other business 

10  Next Meeting - Monday, 16 September 2019 at 2.00 pm 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3013
Mike Relph Senior Democratic Services Adviser E-Mail: mike.relph@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY AND NEIGHBOURHOODS SCRUTINY PANEL

17th June 2019

Meeting commenced: 2.00 p.m.
“                  ended: 3:40 p.m.

PRESENT: Councillor Burch - in the Chair

Councillors Fletcher, Humphreys, Karen Garrido, Nelson, Turner, Joan 
Walsh.

Councillor David Lancaster - Lead Member for Environment and 
Community Safety

OFFICERS: David Seager - Assistant Director, Operational and Community
    Services

David Robinson - Head of Service Streetscene and Parks
Sarah Ashurst - Group Leader (Investment)
Sam Sandford - Corporate Strategy Manager (SCL)
Liz Whitehead - Project Management Officer
Mike Relph - Senior Democratic Services Adviser

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillors Barnes, Ryan, Walker 
and Warner.

2. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 20th May, 2019, were agreed as a 
correct record subject to the deletion of Councillor David Lancaster from the list of 
persons in attendance.

3. SALFORD COMMUNITY LEISURE (SCL) IMPACT REPORT

The Chief Executive of Salford Community Leisure (SCL) submitted a report which 
provided an overview and highlighted their key areas of activity and their resulting 
impact during 2018/19, with the following main themes highlighted:-

 Improving health and wellbeing
 Increasing community involvement 
 Developing education and skills
 Enriching the environment
 Fundraising
 Learning and development
 Recognition of the work SCL do

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Sam Sandford provided a more detailed insight, which supplemented the information 
contained in the report.

Members raised issues and commented on, and noted them, as follows:-

(a) Was it possible to look at the date of the Ordsall Hall Garden Party as this often 
clashed with the Cancer Research Race for Life event? It was indicated this could be 
looked at.

(b) How many of the current staff were Salford residents? The current workforce 
consisted of approximately 500 people, of which 75% lived locally.

(c) How did people engage with the various health programmes which were offered? 
Some were referred by health professionals, while others did so as individuals and 
independently.

(d) What engagement had been made with older members of the community to 
encourage their use of open places and green space areas? Some work had been 
done in this regard and was ongoing.

(e) Where there any specific activities and initiatives which had an impact on 
addressing the wide-ranging issues created by child poverty?  Similarly what health 
focussed events were organised where families could participate together? Many of 
SCL’s activities were free and family participation was encouraged where 
appropriate, but these were things which needed to be built upon and enhanced.

(f)  Against a background, where the use of libraries was perhaps falling, was it 
necessary to take steps to better promote them and the various facilities and 
services they offered? Had a survey of customers and what they wanted, been 
undertaken? Promotion of library services was of great value, but this needed to be 
more localised, reflecting the needs and services available in individual areas of 
Salford, rather than a standardised city wide approach.

(g) What progress had been made with the roll out of the Library Plan for Salford? 
This was currently in Year 2 of a five year programme and there had been some 
minor revisions to the original timetable. A more detailed update on this could be 
provided to the Panel.

(h)  Concerns were expressed with regard to the pricing policy for SCL gyms, against 
those of the private sector, particularly the impact this had in encouraging their use 
by young people. This was a highly competitive commercial field and every effort 
was made to ensure the charges for SCL facilities made them an attractive option for 
everyone.

(i) What options were considered for the sale, or re-use of children’s hardback books 
that were no longer required by the library service? Such options were pursued 
wherever practicable and more details on this could be provided.

(j) The following specific questions were posed in relation to the library service, to 
which it was agreed responses would be provided:-

Page 2



i. What has been the impact so far, on the introduction of ‘no fines’ amnesty? 
ii. How many people have signed up to Open Plus and what are the 

demographics?

(k)  Concerns were expressed with regard to the pricing policy for SCL gyms, against 
those of the private sector, particularly the impact this had in encouraging their use 
by young people. This was a highly competitive commercial field and every effort 
was made to ensure the charges for SCL facilities made them an attractive option for 
everyone.

(l) What options were considered for the sale, or re-use of children’s hardback books 
that were no longer required by the library service? Such options were pursued 
wherever practicable and more details on this could be provided.

(m) Was learning to swim part of the national curriculum? It was confirmed this was 
the case and SCL played an active part in working with local schools in this regard.

(n) Did SCL play a part in organising regional, or national events in the City? Yes 
particularly sporting events staged at Salford Quays.

RESOLVED: THAT the contents of the report and the additional information be noted 
and in doing so it be acknowledged that SCL have made many improvements over 
the past 12 months and continue to be successful in activities which are in very 
competitive commercial markets.

4. PLACE DIRECTORATE BUSINESS PLAN 2018/19 AND YEAR AHEAD

Sarah Ashurst gave a presentation which provided an update and overview of the 
realisation of the Place Directorate’s Business Plan over the past 12 months and its 
ongoing development over next year, and which highlighted the following key 
issues/themes:-

 Priorities
 Business Plan Quarter 4 Progress
 Key Performance Indicators
 Accolades 2018/19
 Place Directorate - Revenue Budget
 Reduction in Place Directorate expenditure
 Operational and Commercial Services 
 Regulatory Services
 Community Safety
 Place Directorate Leadership Structure
 Place Directorate Teams

Members raised issues and commented on, and noted them, as follows:-

(a) What powers did the City Council have in returning back to use, houses which 
had been left vacant for a long period of time? This was a common issue and local 

Page 3



authorities were empowered by the relevant H.M. Government legislation and 
guidance in this regard.

(b) Did the City Council’s procurement process encourage the use of local suppliers, 
particularly in terms of fresh food produce? This was something which was 
encouraged wherever possible, but was primarily dependent on the scale of 
operations of the suppliers concerned and their ability to meet the City Council’s 
demands and similarly be financially competitive. 

(c) Was there a policy with regard to “pocket parks” and encouraging local residents 
to take ownership of these? There was a network of “friends” groups who undertook 
this role across Salford, but the respective level of community involvement varied 
from area to area. Similarly the commitment groups provided to such activities 
fluctuated as memberships frequently changed. Ensuring more stable memberships 
was key to the sustainability and effectiveness of such groups.

(d) Was there the potential to encourage people to buy produce from local growers, 
particularly though staging farmer’s markets? Such markets could prove effective but 
were not necessarily something which was the City Council’s responsibility. Another 
option was perhaps to encourage people to buy direct from locally based growers.

RESOLVED:  THAT the contents of the presentation be noted.
  

5. PARKS AND GREENSPACE ACCESS

The Strategic Director for Place submitted a report which highlighted recent 
improvement projects and identified future action with regard to Salford’s parks and 
greenspaces and ensure they were available for everyone, irrespective of their 
individual access needs.

David Seager, David Robinson and Liz Whitehead also provide a presentation, 
which supplemented the information contained in the report, providing details on 
specific schemes and highlighting the following key themes/issues in relation to 
green space access:-

 Equality Act 2010
 Developing new projects 
 Case Studies 

o Ordsall Park
o Peel Park
o Loopline Improvement Programme 
o Accessible Play
o Boothsbank Park

 Future Activity  

The Panel were informed the key to success of this area of activity was to engage 
effectively with the existing networks, or interested parties, as well as build upon 
these and create additional ones, listen to their needs and aspirations, and work 
together to attempt to realise these.

Page 4



RESOLVED:  THAT the contents of the report and presentation be noted.

6. WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20

Members gave consideration to the Panel’s suggested Work Programme for 
2019/20. 

It was indicated that the Chair and Deputy Chair had met with the Strategic Director 
for Place to discuss the Panel’s Work Programme 2019/20 from which a series of 
potential topics and issues had been identified, which now subject to them proving 
feasible, had to be scheduled.

RESOLVED: THAT following items be provisionally included on the agenda for the 
next meeting of the Panel:-

 Library Improvement Plan - Update and Future Actions
 Place Directorate Business Plan 2019/20 
  Trading Standards - Combating Counterfeiting 

7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

It was noted that the next meeting of the Panel would be held on Monday, 15th

July, 2019, commencing at 2.00 pm.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



PART 1
(OPEN TO THE PUBLIC)

ITEM NO. 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACE

TO 
THE COMMUNITY AND NEIGHBOURHOODS SCRUTINY PANEL

 15TH JULY 2019

TITLE:  REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING  2019/20

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

It is recommended that the Panel:
 Note the current position and forecasted position to year end for the Service Group’s 

revenue budget and capital programme.
 Note the Revenue Budget Outturn position for 2018/19
 Note the progress made towards the agreed savings programme.
 Note further measures to bring forecast expenditure back in line with the budget.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

(a) Revenue Outturn 2018/19
The Service Group revenue outturn was a balanced budget. Revenue Budget of £80.681m with the 
outturn expenditure being £80.680m. The budget and outturn figures include year end notional 
ajustments of £50.236m in respect of Depreciation and Amortisation charges.

(b) Revenue
The Service Group budget for 2019/20 is £46.279m with forecast expenditure for the year of 
£46.644m, providing an adverse variance of £0.365m at year end. 

(c) Savings
The Service Group agreed CSR savings for the year total £1.837m, with all of the £1.127m showing 
as either achieved or low risk. 

(d) Capital
The Service Group programme budget for 2019/20 is £115.201m, including re-profiled scheme 
resources of £26.662m.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 SAP general ledger and BI reports
 Various documents held on the accountancy team

CONTACT OFFICERS: 
Paul Hutchings (Revenue) 0161 793 2574 paul.hutchings@salford.gov.uk
Alex Archer (Capital) 0161 778 0498 alex.archer@salford.gov.uk

Page 7

Agenda Item 4

mailto:paul.hutchings@salford.gov.uk
mailto:alex.archer@salford.gov.uk


2

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  High 

Key risks to budgetary control risk and achievement of savings are identified in this report 

SOURCE OF FUNDING: Sections in this report consider both the revenue budget and capital programme

LEGAL ADVICE OBTAINED: Not applicable

FINANCIAL ADVICE OBTAINED:   This report concerns key aspects of the Council’s revenue finances and 
has been produced by the Finance division.

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): None specifically 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 2019/20 revenue budget; 2019/20 capital programme

Page 8



3

1     Introduction

1.1 This report is set out in four main sections. 
• Section 2 shows the revenue outturn position for 2018/19
• Section 3 sets out the current position of expenditure against the revenue budget and forecasts the 

year end position, highlighting any risks/sensitivities, and revenue budget virements proposed.
• Section 4 provides an analysis of progress made towards agreed CSR savings targets.
• Section 5 provides an update of the capital programme.

2 Revenue Outturn 2018/19

2.1 The final revenue outturn position was net expenditure of £80.680m against a budget of £80.681m, 
resulting in a positive variance of £0.001m. 

2.2 Included within the above figures are the year end notional budget adjustments of £50.236m in 
relation to depreciation and capital recharges.

3      Revenue Budget

3.1 The current position and year end forecast are set out in Table A below. Agreed savings (discussed 
in section 3) have been built into the budget figures. Expenditure data reflects salaries and other 
expenditure up to 31/05/2019.  

3.2     Table A: Revenue budget to May 2019

Annual 
Budget 
£000

Forecast 
Outturn 
£000

Forecast 
Variation 
£000

Risk Assessment

Planning & Transport 15,674 15,083 592 GREEN
Housing, Communities & 
Neighbourhoods 767 1,056 (289) RED
Environment & 
Community Safety 17,226 17,742 (516) RED

Culture & Leisure 6,786 6,786 0 GREEN

Regeneration 7,039 7,105 (66) RED

Property (1,212) (1,127) (85) RED

Total 46,279 46,645 (365)

Page 9



4

3.3   Set out below are those areas which have been identified as currently representing the greatest risks   
in    budgetary control. These include areas where there is a high current and/or projected variance 
and/or a high risk of not achieving CSR savings targets. 

Planning and Transport

The £0.592m positive variance reported is due in the main to a positive variation on income specifically 
in respect of advertising on the highways and streetworks.

Housing, Communities and Neighbourhoods

The £0.289m adverse variance is mainly due the underachievement of Integrated Place savings.

Environment and Community Safety

The £0.516m reported adverse variance is due in the main to a combination of the underachievement 
previous years’ savings targets within Grounds Maintenance, Street Scene and Waste Services of 
£0.487m and a Public Health saving of £0.100m. This has been offset in part by underspends across 
the wider service group and work remains on-going to mitigate this overspend in year and to address 
the achievement of the savings going forward.

Regeneration

The £0.066m reported adverse variance relates to the underachievement of a GM shared services 
savings target (which is a Council Wide target that has been attributed to Regeneration).

Property

The £0.085m negative variance on Property is due in the main to a forecasted overspend of £0.066m 
on repairs and maintenance of corporate buildings. Discussions are ongoing to help mitigate some of 
the issues. 

4 Savings

4.1 Approved ‘new’ savings for the Service Group agreed during the 2019/20 budget setting process 
totalled £1.127m.  Progress to date is summarised in Table B below.  A more detailed breakdown is 
provided in Appendix 1.

 
4.2 Table B Savings summary

  Saving Progress Shortfall 

Risk Assessment RAG Rating
Target   
£000

to date          
£000

to date    
£000

Low risk or already achieved Green 811 811 0
Medium Risk Amber 316 0 316
High Risk Red 0 0 0
Total  1,127 811 316

Page 10



5

4.3   All 2019/20 savings have been rated as achieved or highly likely to be achieved given current estimates, 
as £0.316m relates to the generation of additional income this has been assessed as medium risk 
whilst being closely monitored to ensure that income does in fact come in.

5   Capital

5.1 Introduction
This section advises the Lead Members of developments regarding the Place Capital programme, which 
as of May 2019, totals £115.201m.

5.2 2019/20 Capital Programme

Executive Lead Members are asked to consider and comment on the current Place Capital 
programme, analysed by service area in Table C.

Table C – Programme and Expenditure May 2019
Scheme Group Invest to 

Save
Unsupported
borrowing

Grant Contributions 
(inc. capital
receipts)

Approved 
Programme
2019-20

Spend to 
May 2019

£m £m £m £m £m £m
Regeneration - 18.132 14.969 0.264 33.364 4.883
Housing - Regulatory Services - 3.650 0.410 - 4.059 0.233
Housing and Planning - 6.776 - 3.386 10.163 0.024
Property 42.549 4.555 0.035 - 47.139 2.939
Environment - 3.617 0.148 0.163 3.928 0.346
Highways - 4.885 6.464 0.009 11.357 0.308
Salford Community Leisure 0.241 4.029 0.884 0.038 5.192 0.154

42.790 45.643 22.909 3.860 115.201 8.886

Appendix 2 provides a detailed scheme analysis of the programme by funding source.

5.4 Re-profiled scheme resources of £26.663m are included within the approved Place programme of 
£115.201m and summarised below by service area.

Planning and transport

Highways

The approved programme for Highways includes re-profiled resources of £2.501m relating to  
Highways Block funded schemes, £1.146m for Construction schemes and £0.218m to support 
Drainage and Culvert investment.

Housing, Communities and Neighbourhoods

Housing Regulatory Services

Included within the approved Housing Regulatory Services programme of £4.059m, are re-profiled 
resources of £0.900m in unsupported borrowing for Private Sector Housing Enforcement, £0.478m 
relating to Empty Properties schemes and £0.354m for Winter Welfare.

Housing and Planning

Page 11



6

Within the approved programme of £10.163m for Housing and Planning, there are re-profiled 
resources of £2.000m for Tower Blocks and £1.886m for Housing delivery.

Salford Community Leisure 

Leisure resources reprofiled from 2018/19 mainly relate to Pendleton Leisure Centre £0.424m, 
Cleavley Track Improvements £0.360m, the Library Improvement Programme £0.100m, Brookhouse 
Changing Room Improvements £0.078m and Salford Museum and Art Gallery £0.065m.

Environment and Community Safety

Environment

Included within the approved Environment programme of £3.928m are reprofiled resources of 
£0.152m for Castle Irwell Flood Basin, £0.140m relating to Landslide Broughton, £0.150m for the 
purchase of Waste Vehicles and £0.147m for Peel Park HLF Improvements.

Regeneration

The approved programme for Regeneration of £33.364m, includes re-profiled resources of £1.613m 
for Strategic Connections, £1.394m for City Centre Property Acquisition Fund, £1.259m for RHS 
Bridgewater, £0.856m for Swinton Town Centre Development, £0.800m for Bridgwater Canal and 
£0.800m for Pendleton Enhancement.

Property

Re-profiled resources of £11.421m for the 100 Embankment scheme, which is an invest to save 
scheme, are included within the approved Property Programme of £47.139m.

5.5  Issues/Risks
At this stage there are no issues to be highlighted. The programme will continue to be closely 
monitored to ensure any potential spend pressures are identified at the earliest opportunity.

5.6 Recommendation
Lead Members are requested to review the current position regarding the 2019/20 capital 
programme.

Page 12



7

Appendix 1 – Budget Savings Tracker 2019/20

2019/20 Budget Savings tracker
Tracker 

Ref Description
2019/20

£m
PL401 Commercial Services (fees and charges)

This proposal will see fees & charges increased in line with inflation 0.112

PL403 Procurement of waste food bags
Re-procurement of bio-degradeable food waste bags.

0.045

PL406 Vehicle Management Services - one off hire contract saving 
Extension period of tipper hire agreement with Urban Vision to February 2020

0.080

PL407 Premises licensing fees 
Review of fees & charges in to reflect changes in rateable values

0.020

PL408 Citywide catering charges 
Increase in scholl meal charges by 10p, Salford still remains one of the lowest in GM

0.107

PL409 Football pitch line markings 
Pitch line marking to be carried out by a private contractor 

0.050

PL410 Bus Lane Enforcement
Service to be brought back in house from Manchester City Council.

0.039

PL411 VER/VS - 1 post
Reduction in management costs through VER.

0.044

PL412 Eccles Town Team 
Removal of historic Eccles Town Team revenue grant

0.027

PL413 Removal of Eccles portaloo
Removal of Eccles portaloo as contract expires on 1st March 2019

0.020

PL414 On street car parking reserves
One off removal of car parking reserve

0.100

PL415 Highways Advertising 
Opportunity for additional income from local advertising opportunities

0.075

PL416 School crossing patrol 0.050

PL417 Media City Metrolink
One off release of surplus which has accrued over last 18 months.

0.093

PL418 Review of Pest Control
Review of charges to provide additional income.

0.065

PL419 Highways efficiencies
Efficiency gains achieved by UV highway maintenenace services in respect of 
Confirm system from annual licence fees and network charges.

0.045

PL420 Greater Manchester Road Activities Permit Scheme (GMRAPS)
One off saving in relation to increase in number of permits being issued together with 
a reduction in costs.

0.100

PL421 Increase S38 / S278 admin fees from 8% to 10% 0.030

Page 13



8

PL422 Reduction in sponsorship to BBC Philharmonic 0.025

 Place total 1.127

Page 14



Appendix 2 Capital Programme 2019/20

Scheme Group Sub area Invest to 
Save

Unsupported
borrowing

Grant Contributions 
(inc. capital
receipts)

Approved 
Programme
2019-20

Spend to 
May 2019

Regeneration Pre implementation - Regeneration - 0.306 0.001 - 0.307 0.047
Regeneration Pre implementation - Infrastructure - 0.332 - - 0.332 0.009
Regeneration City Centre - 4.324 3.598 0.049 7.971 0.017
Regeneration Ordsall and Salford Quays - 0.596 2.867 - 3.463 0.021
Regeneration Western Gateway - 0.098 - - 0.098 -
Regeneration Town centres - 1.006 - 0.050 1.056 0.029
Regeneration RHS Bridgewater - 7.950 2.205 - 10.155 4.361
Regeneration Strategic Connections - 1.613 6.298 - 7.911 0.384
Regeneration Strategic Place Making - 0.526 - 0.164 0.690 0.015
Regeneration Capitalised salaries and project costs - 1.381 - - 1.381 -
Housing - Regulatory Services Home Improvement Agency - 0.141 - - 0.141 0.024
Housing - Regulatory Services Winter Welfare - 0.084 - - 0.084 -
Housing - Regulatory Services Affordable warmth - 0.224 - - 0.224 0.046
Housing - Regulatory Services Handyperson - 0.354 - - 0.354 0.028
Housing - Regulatory Services Project Development Costs - 0.058 - - 0.058 0.006
Housing - Regulatory Services Salford Money Line - 0.040 - - 0.040 -
Housing - Regulatory Services Disabled Facilities work - - - - - 0.020
Housing - Regulatory Services Empty property project costs - 0.505 - - 0.505 -
Housing - Regulatory Services Landlord Accreditation - 0.005 - - 0.005 0.000
Housing - Regulatory Services DCLG Cluster - 0.010 - - 0.010 -
Housing - Regulatory Services Empty properties - 0.444 0.410 - 0.853 0.056
Housing - Regulatory Services Housing enforcement - 1.430 - - 1.430 0.026
Housing - Regulatory Services Housing crime reduction - 0.355 - - 0.355 0.026
Housing - Regulatory Services CPO - 0.122 - - 0.122 -
Housing and Planning Creating a new Pendleton - 1.944 - - 1.944 0.020
Housing and Planning Tower block safety works - 4.000 - - 4.000 -
Housing and Planning Derive - - - 3.386 3.386 -
Housing and Planning 101 HRA new builds - - - - - 0.004
Housing and Planning Housing & Planning capitalised salaries - 0.710 - - 0.710 -
Property Low carbon (carbon management) - 0.502 - - 0.502 -
Property Car Parking - 0.105 - - 0.105 -
Property General - 3.751 - - 3.751 0.031
Property Swinton Gateway - - 0.035 - 0.035 -
Property Swinton Demolitions - 0.197 - - 0.197 -
Property 100 Embankment 42.549 - - - 42.549 2.906
Property Cost of disposals * - - - - - 0.002
Environment Greenspace & Streetscene Infrastructure - 1.047 0.148 0.004 1.198 0.177
Environment Parks S106 Schemes - - - 0.159 0.159 0.098
Environment Operational Division Schemes - 2.571 - - 2.571 0.071
Highways Capitalisation of revenue - 2.301 - - 2.301 -
Highways Highways Investment Programme - 1.026 1.114 - 2.140 0.003
Highways Crash Barrier Programme (S) - 0.222 - - 0.222 -
Highways Drainage & Culvert Investment Programme - 0.476 - - 0.476 0.095
Highways Construction schemes - 0.364 0.674 0.009 1.047 -
Highways Structures - 0.042 - - 0.042 -
Highways Signs and Bollards - 0.146 - - 0.146 -
Highways Highways Network Management - 0.032 - - 0.032 -
Highways Lighting Programme (High Mast) - 0.144 - - 0.144 -
Highways SUDS - 0.100 - - 0.100 -
Highways Block 3 - 0.030 4.676 - 4.706 0.211
Salford Community Leisure Leisure Centre Equipment - 0.001 - - 0.001 -
Salford Community Leisure Worsley Leisure Centre Refurbishment - - - - - 0.001
Salford Community Leisure Pendleton Leisure Centre - 2.625 - - 2.625 0.006
Salford Community Leisure Cleavley track - Synthetic Track Repair - 0.361 0.306 - 0.667 0.087
Salford Community Leisure Playing Pitch Development - 0.067 - - 0.067 -
Salford Community Leisure Brookhouse Changing Rooms - 0.104 - - 0.104 -
Salford Community Leisure Amblecote playing fields - 0.100 0.200 - 0.300 -
Salford Community Leisure Salford Roosters Changing Rooms - 0.300 0.378 0.028 0.706 0.003
Salford Community Leisure Cadishead Rhinos Changing Rooms - 0.013 - - 0.013 -
Salford Community Leisure Cultural Development Schemes 0.241 0.457 - 0.010 0.708 0.057

42.790 45.643 22.909 3.860 115.201 8.886

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Quays Culture – Lightwaves 

2

Place draft 
business plan

2019 -2020 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 5



01.

Salford growth context 3

02.

Place annual outputs 4

03.

Place vision 5

04. 

Place strategic priorities 6

05.

Place budgets 7

06. 

Draft business action plan 8

07.

How we will manage this 13

08.

Place performance measures/indicators 14

09.

Place senior leadership structure 15

10.

Teams to deliver this 16

Contents

Peel Park 

P
age 18



POPULATION PREDICTED TO GROW YEAR ON YEAR BY 2,200 TO REACH 300,000

01.
Salford 
growth 
context

GVA £5BN SET 

TO DOUBLE IN THE 
NEXT DECADE

FASTEST 
GROWING ECONOMY 
IN MANCHESTER

City Centre Salford 

1,800 HOMES NEEDED YEAR 
ON YEAR BY 2040

STRONG RESIDENTIAL 
MARKET

AMBITIOUS UNIVERSITY – GRADUATE 
RETENTION GROWING YEAR ON YEAR

DEMAND FOR OFFICE SPACE 
DEMAND CONTINUES

3

P
age 19



02.
Place annual 
outputs

£13M PUBLIC 

SECTOR INVESTMENT
£462M PRIVATE 

SECTOR INVESTMENT

809
NEW JOBS

3344
NEW 
HOMES

7154 SQM 

COMMERCIAL 
FLOOR SPACE

Bridgewater Canal 4

£

10
INWARD 
INVESTMENTS

554
OLDER & VULNERABLE RESIDENTS 
SUPPORTED TO MAINTAIN THEIR 
HOMES IN A SAFE , WARM AND DRY 
CONDITION

7181 
HOUSEHOLDD ASSISTED TO ACCESS 
ENERGY EFFICIENCY MEASURES & 
ACHIEVE AFFORDABLE WARMTH

46% 
OF HOUSEHOLD WASTE 
SENT FOR RECYCLING

342
EMPTY HOMES 
RETURNED TO USE

P
age 20



‘Serving Salford’

The Place Directorate’s remit is twofold in driving forward the council’s

economic growth agenda through economic regeneration and

development to delivering services that touch almost every aspect of

residents’ daily lives, from highly visible activities like bin collections and

street cleaning to less noticeable tasks like dealing with contaminated

land.

Therefore, it is crucial that the directorate has a clear set of priorities and

supporting actions that ensures services continue to deliver positive

outcomes for the many diverse communities which it serves within the

context of a growing city and ever tighter resource availability. By

delivering these actions we plan to make the city a cleaner, safer,

greener and more vibrant place to live, and in doing so, ensure our

communities play a part in decisions which affect their lives, both now

and in the future.

The Place Directorate has adopted a vision statement of “Serving  

Salford” and has set out a series of key priorities that support and 
contribute to the councils overall vision and priorities

03.
Place vision

MediaCityUK 5

P
age 21



 Transforming the way we deliver services to our residents with a 

view to meeting financial management strategies, including public 

sector reform, with a focus on customer outcomes.

 Delivery of waste management  - Adopting strategies and services 

that encourage reuse, recycling and the reduction of the city’s 

waste in an environmental sustainable manner.

 To make Salford a cleaner, greener and safer place.

 Driving economic growth through regeneration that directly benefits 

the people of Salford and secures sustainable regeneration. 

 Securing further investment and funding to facilitate and enable 

new investment, infrastructure and development into the city.

 To support growth within the city, through infrastructure 

management and maintenance and delivery of key operational 

front line services

 Delivery of more affordable homes.

 Management of effective strategic partnerships including Urban 

Vision, Salford Community Leisure and Salix Homes. 

04.
Place strategic 
priorities 

Lightwaves – The Quays 
6

P
age 22



05.
Place budgets

Revenue budgets 2019-2020

£87,541,173 
Gross expenditure

(£41,261,729)
Income

£46,279,444
Net expenditure

£4.066m 
2017/18

£3.334m 
2016/17

£4.629m 
2015/16

£21.975m 
over the last 6 years

£6.982m 
2014/15

£1.837m 
2018/19

£1.127m 
2019/20

Reduction in expenditure over the last 6 years

7
Precarious Carnival 

Capital Budget 2019-2020

£31.375m 
Invest to Save

£29.089m 
General borrowing

£26.085m 
Grant

£1.989m 
Other

P
age 23



D
R

A
FT

 2
0

1
9-

20
20

 
B

u
si

n
es

s 
A

ct
io

n
 

P
la

n

Outcomes What are we doing to make a 
difference?

Start date Due Date Key milestones, outcomes and performance measures

Priority: Tackling Poverty & Inequality

1. Supporting families to 

give children the best start in 

life

1.1  To provide children with access to 

healthy school meals and promotion of 

healthy eating

1 April 2019 31 March 2020 - Take up levels of Universal Infant Free School Meals 

- Take up levels of free school meals 

- Take up of Holiday Hunger service

2. Supporting people to stay 

in their homes by reducing 

the cost of essential living

2.1  Supporting older and vulnerable 

residents to maintain their homes in a 

safe, warm and dry condition

1 April 2019 31 March 2020 Providing assistance to 500 vulnerable households

2.2 To assist 2,400 households to 

access energy efficiency measures and 

achieve affordable warmth

1 April 2019 31 March 2020 Deliver 800 physical energy efficiency measures (estimated - a/w 

outcome of GM and national reviews) to improve domestic energy 

efficiency.

Assist 1,600 households with soft measures and advice/referrals to 

improve energy efficiency and obtain the best energy tariff for their 

needs.

3. Supporting people to 

participate in culture, leisure 

and sport

3.1 To increase regular participation in 

culture, sport and leisure activities to all

1 April 2019 31 March 2020 Improvements in overall levels of participation

8

P
age 24



Outcomes What are we doing to make a 
difference?

Start date Due Date Key milestones, outcomes and performance 
measures

Priority: Economic Development

4. Ensuring we are 

getting the right type 

of development and 

investment at the 

right time attracting 

high levels of 

economic growth, 

employment and 

new homes.

4.1 To ensure that the city council is 

doing all it can to plan for, facilitate and 

enable  new investment/development

1 April 2019 31 March 2020 Implementation of the local plan and GMSF

Planning application performance

- Planning application fee income | Number of planning 

applications received | Major district applications delivered on 

time | Number of appeals

Section 106 agreements

- income received | allocations  | new agreements

4.2 Work with GM/GMCA partners to 

bring major investment into the city to 

drive forward infrastructure and property 

development. 

1 April 2019 31 March 2020 Fully developed pipeline of projects, prioritised and embedded within 

the necessary funding streams. 

The number and the amount of funding accessed i.e. GMCA, HE, 

TFGM and others. 

4.3 Continue to work with partners to 

accommodate and support delivery of 

development schemes that will stimulate 

further growth across the city, creating 

significant levels of investment and a 

range of benefits for local communities

1 April 2019 31 March 2020 - Amount of private and public sector investment  secured

- Commercial floor space gained 

- No. of new jobs 

- New public realm and connectivity between key destinations

- Additional business rate revenues

4.4. Work with Manchester Growth 

Company to attract inward investment 

into the city

1 April 2019 31 March 2020 - No. of businesses relocated

D
R

A
FT

 2
0

1
9-

20
20

 
B

u
si

n
es

s 
A

ct
io

n
 

P
la

n

9

P
age 25



Outcomes What are we doing to make 
a difference?

Start date Due Date Key milestones, outcomes and performance 
measures

Priority: Economic Development

5. Service and 

sustain an inclusive 

growing city

5.1 Deliver high performing refuse, 

recycling and street cleansing 

service

1 April 2019 31 March 2020 To increase recycling rate in accordance with regional targets

Ensure that all the City’s adopted highways are Grade B+

To ensure that SCC adopts strategies and waste collection services 

that we encourage reuse, recycling and the reduction of the city’s 

waste in an environmental sustainable manner

5.2 To build safer, stronger, more 

resilient communities in Salford and 

reduce the fear of crime. 

1 April 2019 31 March 2020 Delivering crime and disorder reductions.

Driving down crime measure focussing on reducing the levels of all 

crimes. 

Quarterly CSP strategy action plan reviews focus on: 

- Driving Down Crime

- Tackling Anti-Social Behaviour

- Building resilient communities

- Protecting vulnerable people

- Reducing offending

D
R

A
FT

 2
0

1
9-

20
20

 
B

u
si

n
es

s 
A

ct
io

n
 

P
la

n

10

P
age 26



Outcomes What are we doing to make a 
difference?

Start date Due Date Key milestones, outcomes and performance measures

Priority: Housing

6.Drive and deliver 

inclusive housing 

growth

6.1 Increase the number of new homes 

including affordable housing

1 April 2019 March 2020 

and beyond

Delivery of Derive’s business plan objectives and housing delivery 

outcomes (2023)

No. of new homes per year

No. of new affordable housing per year

Maximise partner investment for affordable housing

6.2 Ensure housing strategies and 

policies balance growth with meeting 

housing needs

1 April 2019 2020 Completion of housing strategy review (2019)

Contribute to the fair rents commission (2019)

Contribute to GM housing strategy 

6.3 Delivery of regeneration housing led 

schemes

1 April 2019 2028 Creating a New Pendleton 

 Delivery of fire safety works

 Ongoing contract management

 Delivery of the Pendleton Regeneration and masterplan through 

the development agreement and other partnerships

1 April 2019 2021 Charlestown Riverside

 Commence delivery of Phase 2 (143 homes).Phase 3 will 

commence in 2021 with completion in 2024

D
R

A
FT

 2
0

1
9-

20
20

 
B

u
si

n
es

s 
A

ct
io

n
 

P
la

n

11

P
age 27



Outcomes What are we doing to make a 
difference?

Start 
date

Due Date Key milestones, outcomes and performance measures

Priority: Transport

7.Drive and deliver 

strategic 

connectivity

7.1 Improve transport infrastructure to 

facilitate economic growth and cope with 

future demands with our partners

1 April 2019 31 March 

2020  Continue to work with TfGM and other GM authorities to develop and 

secure funding for the priority interventions required within Salford which 

will improve our transport networks to support economic growth, protect 

the environment, improve quality of life for all and develop an innovative 

city-region. 

 Influence the delivery of public and private sector investment. 

 Continue to work with TfGM, GMCA, Highways England, and bus and

rail operators to support the creation of a fully integrated public transport

system, reducing the need for interchange, improving journey time

reliability and supporting healthier travel. This includes the development

of capacity on our Metrolink and rail systems as well as enhancing bus

travel, while recognising the importance of maintaining and making best

use of our local roads and strategic highways.

 To embrace new technology and innovation where there is convincing

evidence to suggest that benefits to our residents, businesses and road

users will be realised.

D
R

A
FT

 2
0

1
9-

20
20

 
B

u
si

n
es

s 
A

ct
io

n
 

P
la

n

12

P
age 28



Risks Performance 
measures

Finance Workforce

The business plan will also be monitored through the agreed performance reporting process to the City Mayor

and Executive Lead Member (s), this includes reports on:

 agreed key performance measures and risks, as part of the corporate quarterly performance monitoring

process and internally with the service group

 together with regular financial reports to Senior Management Team and Executive Lead Members.

07. How we will manage this

13

P
age 29



• Number of older and vulnerable residents supported to maintain their 
homes in a safe, warm and dry condition 

• Number of households assisted to access energy efficiency measures 
and achieve affordable warmth 

• Reduction in the level of all crime 

• % of household waste sent for recycling, reuse or composting

• Ensure that all the City’s adopted highways are Grade B+

• Amount of public sector investment secured

• Amount of private sector investment secured

• Creation of new jobs

• Delivery of new homes

• Delivery of commercial floor space 

08. DRAFT 2019-2020 
Place Performance 
indicators/measures

14Precarious Carnival 

P
age 30



Strategic Director Place
Ben Dolan 

Assistant Director
Operational Services

David Seager

Assistant Director
Regulatory & Client Services

Peter Openshaw

Assistant Director
Housing & Planning

Chris Findley 

Assistant Director 
Regeneration
Jim Wensley

Head of Service
Citywide & Community Services

Dominic Clarke

Head of Service
Community Safety

Jeanette Staley

Head of Service
Urban Renewal

John Wooderson

Head of Service
Strategic Infrastructure

Shoaib Mohammed

Head of Service
Business

Bernie Vaudrey

Head of Service
Client Highways Engineer

Head of Service
Development

Kurt Partington

Head of Service
Housing

Andrew Leigh 

Head of Service
Street Scene & Parks

David Robinson

Head of Service
VMS

Terry Dixie

09.
Place Senior 
Leadership Structure 

15

P
age 31



11. 
Teams to 
deliver this

Citywide and Community Services
Incl. bereavement  (cemeteries, crematoria and
Closed churchyards) and Citywide services (school
catering, building cleaning, catering and events)

Streetscene and Parks
Incl. management and maintenance of green space,
parks and open spaces, street cleansing, Salford
Ranger Team,  waste and recycling.

Vehicle Management Service
Keeping the council fleet and maintenance
equipment running to enable the delivery of core
Council services.

Neighbourhood Managers
responsible for creating, developing and sustaining 
local partnership structures that bring about 
successful models of local service co-operation, 
joint working and service delivery.

Community Safety
Community Protection Team, Community Safety
and CCTV and Security Services

Regulatory services
Environmental Crime, Environmental Health –
Food  Hygiene, Pest Control and Health and 
Safety, Corporate Health and Safety. 
Environmental Protection, Housing Crime 
Reduction Team ,Licensing and Trading 
Standards, including Food Standards

Private sector housing
Landlord licensing, Empty Properties, 
Affordable Warmth, Housing Standards 
Enforcement, Home Improvement Agency

Regeneration
Strategic Growth and Investment, Strategic 
Infrastructure and Transport, Regeneration and 
Development, Business Support and 
Bridgewater Canal team

Housing and Planning
Housing Strategy and Enabling, Pendleton 
Programme, Planning Policy and Environmental 
Policy, Climate Change and Low Carbon

10.
Teams to 
deliver this 

16

P
age 32



Any questions

Dukes Drive Lightwaves – The Quays 

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Briefing ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

15 July 2019

TITLE:  Library Service Improvement Programme Update at July 2019

RECOMMENDATIONS: That Members note the contents of the report.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The 4 year library service improvement programme was approved by the City Council in September 2017. 
This report details progress in the first part of the programme. The next phase of the plan is still being 
developed and will be brought to a future meeting.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
Cabinet papers  26th September 2017 – Library Service Improvement Programme.

KEY DECISION: No

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Original report detailed the links to key City Council policies.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
An Equality Impact Assessment was undertaken with regard to the provision of the Open + system at 
Cadishead Library.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 
Salford Community Leisure have a risk register for actions in the first part of the programme.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Careful monitoring of expenditure for the 4 year plan is in place.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS:     
There were a number of procurement issues relating to the purchase of equipment that are all now 
completed.

HR IMPLICATIONS:    N/A

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

CONTACT OFFICER:    David Seager  david.seager@salford.gov.uk / 0161 925 1115
                                        Steve Hassall  steve.hassall@scll.co.uk / 0161 778 0358 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

Page 35

Agenda Item 6

mailto:david.seager@salford.gov.uk
mailto:steve.hassall@scll.co.uk


Update on Libraries Improvement Programme: July 2019
 

Earlier progress 
 217 new public PCS were installed 2017/18, along with self-service printing facilities
 RFID book self-service equipment was installed in libraries in 2018
 Improved refreshments and merchandising was extended to three libraries in 2018
 Worsley Village Community Association took on the oversight of Worsley Library to a total of 

6 hours per week
 The highly successful books@home service was streamlined operationally in 2018, in terms 

of both staffing and vehicle use.

  Recent and planned progress
 ‘Open Plus’ was launched at Cadishead Library in February 2019 and phased in gradually.  

Since mid-April it has been operating fully, with opening increasing by 18 hours to 57 hours 
per week and staffed hours of 25 hours per week.  Barring a few technical teething issues, the 
initial indicators are positive:  175 customers have signed up for Open Plus membership and 
visitors have risen year-on-year by 15%.  Discussions are ongoing with community 
representatives to further promote the improved access and to encourage community use of 
the building.

 A Click and Collect book reservation service will be available for customers at Worsley 
Leisure Centre by the end of July.  I.T. support sessions have been held there as part of a 
partnership with the council’s ‘Digital You’ programme,  whereby Libraries staff provide help to 
customers - in SCL and other locations-  with basic IT skills and with making the most of their 
own devices.

 Three libraries are due to have safe charging points installed – for customers using their own 
devices on WIFI – by September 2019.  One of these is Walkden Gateway library and is 
dependent on the planned relocation of the First Floor children’s library and reconfiguration of 
the Ground Floor space. 

 Significant work has continued on the procurement and management of book stock – loans of 
hardcopy books increased in 2018/19 for the first time in many years, and there was also a 
marked increase in e-book/e-audio downloads.  It is expected that the recent ‘fine-free’ 
initiative will result in more usage by people previously deterred - by overdue charges - from 
accessing the service and returning ‘late’ items.

 A restructure of the wider Libraries management team has been completed in recent months 
to best fit the requirements of the Improvement Programme and to accommodate staffing 
savings.

 Discussions are taking place to implement the most effective means of exploiting the cross-
SCL staffing and self-service equipment at Salford Sports Village/Lower Kersal library.  It is 
expected that this will be operational by September 2019 and result in better use of Libraries 
staff at other locations at some times, as well as a dramatic rise in customer access.

 Discussions continue with the Worsley Village Community Association to increase their 
oversight of the library up to its total opening of 20 hours.

Page 36


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on 17 June 2019 and matters arising
	4 Place Directorate Budget 2019/20 - Monitoring
	5 Business Plan for Place 2019/20
	6 Library Service Improvement Plan Update

